
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
TUESDAY –MAY 2, 2017 – 6:00 PM 

EVANSDALE CITY HALL 
 

AGENDA 
AMENDED 

 
1. Call to order  

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll call 

 
4. Approval of the May 2, 2017 agenda 

 
5. Mayor Proclamation – Bike to Work Week 

 
6. Approval of the Consent Agenda – All items listed under the consent agenda will be enacted by one motion.  

There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a request is made prior to the time Council votes 
on the motion 

 
a. Approval of April 18, 2017 regular meeting minutes 
b. Liquor License:  

I. Ownership change-Station Mart-1119 River Forest Road 
II. Request for refund-Station Mart-3594 Lafayette Road (sold business 12/31/16-city share 

$25.00) 
  

7. Discussion: Jerry Shoff/Heather Thomas Engineers, Clapsaddle-Garber Associates; updates on River Forest 
Road reconstruction and River Forest Road Levee Trail Project 

 
8. Discussion: Jerry Shoff/Heather Thomas Engineers, Clapsaddle-Garber Associates; Evansdale Street 

Reconstruction Projects 
 

9. Request from Mayor to enter into a Construction Testing & Inspection Services agreement with Team 
Services for the 2017 Evansdale Street Reconstruction Projects 
 

10. Request from Mayor to have unknown liquids tested and removed by WCEC, in an amount not to exceed 
$1,500 

 
11. Resolution 6067 authorizing payment of bills and transfers 

 
12. Request from Mayor to put flashing speed sign at Roosevelt/Lafayette in an amount not to exceed $5,790 

 
13. Ordinance 649 amending Chapter 40, PUBLIC PEACE, of the Evansdale Code of Ordinances by adding 

section 40.06, Noise and Vibrations, second reading 
 

14. Ordinance 650 amending Chapter 50, NUISANCES ABATEMENT PROCEDURE, of the Evansdale Code 
of Ordinances by changing the language and definitions, second reading 
 

15. Ordinance 651 amending Chapter 51, JUNK AND JUNK VEHICLES, of the Evansdale Code of Ordinances 
by changing the language and definitions, second reading 
 

16. Ordinance 652 amending Chapter 66, LOAD AND WEIGHT RESTRICTIONS, of the Evansdale Code of 
Ordinances by changing section 66.03 and adding section 66.05, second reading 

 



17. Request from Public Works Director to purchase 200 ton of salt from Compass Minerals America, Inc. under 
the contracted State of Iowa bid, in the amount of $16,279 for the 2017/2018 winter season 
 

18. Request from Public Works Director to proceed with crack sealing in an amount not to exceed $50,000 as 
budgeted for FY17 
 

19. Request from Mayor to accept and approve low bid from Frickson Bros. Excavating to demolish 3573 
Lafayette Rd. in an amount not to exceed $17,500 
 

20. Resolution 6068 authorizing Mayor or Public Works Director to remove diseased, damaged, dead, or dying 
trees on public property when utilizing city crew and equipment 
 

21. Review and discussion-UTV Ordinance 
 

22. Public discussion: non-agenda items 
 
23. Mayor/Council Reports 
 
24. Adjournment 



 
 

 

City of EvansdalE, iowa 
 

 

PRoClaMation 
 
 
wHEREas,           The Cedar Valley Bicycle Collective is part of our growing 

community of bicycle enthusiasts; and  
   

wHEREas, In 1956 the League of American Wheelmen designated the month 
of May as National Bicycle Month. The League of American 
Bicyclists is now the sponsor; and 

 

wHEREas, Bicycling is not only a recreational activity, but also an aerobic 
and toning exercise suitable for one’s fitness and health regimen, 
as well as an energy-saving, cost-cutting and environmentally 
friendly method of transportation; and 

 

wHEREas, the City of Evansdale and the surrounding Cedar Valley is home 
to a beautiful trail system. 

 

now, tHEREfoRE, I, Doug Faas, Mayor of the City of Evansdale, do hereby proclaim  
 
 

May 2017 as BiCyClE MontH 
May 10, 2017 as BikE to sCHool day 

May 14, 2017 as CyClofEMME day 
May 15 - 19, 2017 as BikE to woRk wEEk 
May 19, 2017 as BikE to woRk day 

 
in Evansdale and encourage our citizens to recognize the importance of bicycle safety and to 
participate in bicycling activities during the month of May as well as throughout the year.  
 

 
in witnEss wHEREof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the official seal of 
the City of Evansdale to be affixed this 2nd day of May 2017.    
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________        ___________________________ 
DeAnne Kobliska         Doug Faas 
City Clerk          Mayor 
   



CITY HALL 
EVANSDALE, IOWA, APRIL 18, 2017 

CITY COUNCIL  
DOUG FAAS, MAYOR, PRESIDING 

 
The City Council of the City of Evansdale, Iowa met in regular session, according to law, the rules of said 
Council and prior notice given each member thereof, in the Council Chambers of City Hall of Evansdale, 
Iowa at 6:00 P.M. on the above date. Council members present in order of roll call: Loftus, Dewater, Seible, 
Nichols, and Walker. Quorum present. 
 
Walker/Seible to approve the April 18, 2017 agenda. Ayes-Five. Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Faas to present the March 2017 Bunger Middle School Students of the Month as follows: 
Dustin Hofmann, Morgan Phillips, Winter McGee, Brady Boehmer, JoAnn Cameron, McKenna Anders, 
and Landen Foote. 
 
Seible/Loftus to approve the following items on the April 18, 2017 consent agenda, excluding item b. 
Minutes and reports. a. Approval of April 4, 2017 regular meeting minutes as amended by correcting the 
response to passage of Resolution 6064 from Councilman Nichols stating that he wasn’t in favor of the 
Ellendale project and that it appeared that nepotism was involved in selecting the contractor. c. Liquor 
License Renewal: Station Mart-Expires 05/05/2017; Pilot Travel Centers-Ownership change. Roll call vote: 
Ayes-Five.  
 
Loftus/Seible to approve the following items on the April 18, 2017 consent agenda. Item b. Accept and 
place on file the minutes and reports from the following Departments, Boards, and Commissions (n/a = not 
available):  Ambulance & Fire Report (Mar), Building Inspection Report (Mar), Clerk/Treasurer Report 
(Mar), Code Enforcement Report (Mar), Evansdale Municipal Housing (Mar), Library (Mar), Parks & Rec 
Dept. (Mar), Planning & Zoning (n/a), Police Dept. (Mar), Storm Water Commission (n/a), and Water 
Works (Mar). Councilman Seible questioned why the Planning & Zoning minutes were not on agenda. 
Mayor Faas responded that they were not available. Roll call vote: Ayes-Five.  
 
Seible/Loftus to approve Resolution 6066 authorizing payment of bills and transfers. Roll call vote: Ayes-
Five. 
 
Request from Animal Control Officer to remove vicious animal from the city. Mayor Faas described the 
case and verified the name of dog to be Jetta. Dog owner, Ricky Daehler, 844 Brookside Ave., stated that 
his dog was not at fault for the Waterloo incident; he has a good dog, the incidents were just freak 
accidents. Councilman Loftus responded that he doesn’t blame Mr. Daehler, it is the breed that can be 
inconsistent at times. Loftus then stated he is in favor of supporting the Animal Control Officer, Chris 
Schares’ recommendation to remove the dog from the City. The Mayor explained the City Ordinance for 
pit bulls. Daehler stated he would do whatever he could to keep the dog. Councilman Dewater questioned 
Chris Schares if he has had contact with this dog. Chris answered no. Seible stated that a couple of weeks 
ago we gave a pardon to a resident in a similar situation and gave resident the opportunity to come into 
compliance with City Code. Sharon Loftus, 309 Morrell Ave., stated she loves animals but if her dog had 
killed another dog she would put her own animal down even if it hurt. Dewater stated that this case is 
more serious than the recent incident regarding vicious dogs, due to the fact that the dog had killed 2 other 
dogs. Dewater/Loftus to approve the Animal Controls Officers recommendation to remove the dog from 
the City. Roll call vote: Ayes-Three. Nays-Two (Seible, Nichols). 
 
Walker/Dewater to approve Ordinance 649 amending Chapter 40, PUBLIC PEACE, of the Evansdale 
Code of Ordinances by adding section 40.06, Noise and Vibrations, first reading. Councilman Loftus 



questioned how we will enforce this addition to the Ordinance. Mayor Faas responded that it will be 
similar to a speeding ticket, if they are caught in violation they will receive a ticket. Councilman Seible 
questioned Police Chief, Jeff Jensen where the vibration noise reading is taken from. Chief Jensen 
explained the decibel meter and how it works. Roll call vote: Ayes-Three. Nays-Two (Loftus, Nichols).  

 
Dewater/Seible to approve as amended by removing a portion of paragraph 18 removing “that was built 
or repaired after the passage of Ordinance 615”, Ordinance 650 amending Chapter 50, NUISANCES 
ABATEMENT PROCEDURE, of the Evansdale Code of Ordinances by changing the language and 
definitions, first reading. Mayor Faas stated he had a few questions for the Council regarding paragraph 
18; asked them to read original Ordinance 615 and recommended to delete the reference “built before”. 
The Mayor explained residents are wanting to be grandfathered in, which makes this Ordinance next to 
impossible to enforce. Roll call vote: Ayes-Five. 

 
Walker/Loftus to approve Ordinance 651 amending Chapter 51, JUNK AND JUNK VEHICLES, of the 
Evansdale Code of Ordinances by changing the language and definitions, first reading. Roll call vote: 
Ayes-Five. 

 
Dewater/Walker to approve Ordinance 652 amending Chapter 66, LOAD AND WEIGHT 
RESTRICTIONS, of the Evansdale Code of Ordinances by changing section 66.03 and adding section 
66.05, first reading. Councilman Seible questioned how the ordinance change will be enforced. Mayor 
Faas responded that it would be difficult to catch offenders, but without the change we will not be able to 
enforce the truck traffic. He also stated that he would talk to local business owners about the new change. 
Councilman Walker stated that law enforcement will enforce like any other violation. Councilman 
Nichols questioned load limits on certain streets. Councilman Loftus questioned how the police 
department are going to enforce the load weights. The Mayor responded that it is based off what the 
vehicle is licensed for. Seible questioned how we would know how much the load is over the licensed 
weight. The Mayor responded that we don’t need to know how much over the limit they are; they will 
receive a ticket for being on our roads with a truck that is licensed for 10 ton, it makes no difference if 
trailer is empty or a full load. Roll call vote: Ayes-Two. Nays-Three (Loftus, Seible, and Nichols). 
Motion failed. The Mayor asked what the council wants for load weight restrictions. Councilman Nichols 
responded he would like to see a designated truck route. The Mayor explained that most cities are moving 
away from the truck route signage, and moving toward the weight limit signs. Nichols/Walker to 
reconsider the motion. Roll call vote: Ayes-Three. Nays-Two (Loftus, Seible). 
 
Walker/Dewater to approve Ordinance 652 amending Chapter 66, LOAD AND WEIGHT 
RESTRICTIONS, of the Evansdale Code of Ordinances by changing section 66.03 and adding section 
66.05, first reading. Roll call vote: Ayes-Three. Nays-Two (Loftus, Seible). 
 
Walker/Loftus to approve request from Angels Memorial Committee to hold the annual Child Safety 
Awareness Day at the Community Response Center on July 9, 2017 from 2:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. Ayes-
Five.  

 
Seible/Dewater to table request from Mayor Faas to have Waterloo Building Maintenance install 3 power 
fans in the roof at City Hall and add venting from bathroom to roof in an amount not to exceed $2,745. 
Mayor Faas explained the issue that condensation was building up and leaking inside City Hall and had 
been occurring for several months. Councilman Dewater questioned the issue and stated that the fans can 
be very loud. Councilman Nichols questioned how moisture and condensation could get up there with a 
tared roof. The Mayor responded that we had 4 professionals on the roof and inside the attic to identify 
the issue in addition the vent fans were never vented all the way through the roof. Roll call vote: Ayes-
Five. 



Dewater/Seible to approve request from City Clerk to enter into an agreement with Simmering-Cory & 
Iowa Codification to have an online, searchable Code of Ordinances in an amount of $750 with the annual 
web hosting in an amount of $450. Ayes-Five. Motion carried.  

 
Walker/Seible to approve request from Police Chief to purchase 4 new rifle sights from Harris Firearms in 
an amount not to exceed $2,200. Police Chief, Jeff Jensen explained the purpose of the request. 
Councilman Loftus asked if this is in the budget. Jensen responded no, but he is using drug forfeiture 
funds. Ayes-Five. Motion carried.  

 
Loftus/Seible to approve request from the Mayor to have B & B Lock & Key rekey Evansdale Senior 
Residences in an amount not to exceed $1,200. Mayor Faas explained that the master set of keys was in 
the Knox box and cannot be located. Ayes-Five. Motion carried.  

 
Walker/Seible to approve request from Public Works Director to accept quote from Frickson Backhoe & 
Trucking to repair a sewer main at Lafayette and Eldene Court and West of Eldene Court on Lafayette in 
an amount not to exceed $6,000 (city will pay for materials). Mayor Faas explained that the amount 
requested will cover entire project. Ayes-Five. Motion carried.  

 
Seible/Loftus to approve request from Mayor Faas to approve Municipal Pipe and Tool to televise 
approximately 3,500 linear feet of sanitary sewer and storm water lines in an amount not to exceed 
$3,000. Mayor Faas stated the televising coincides with the 2017 Reconstruction projects. Heather, CGA, 
explained the need for the request. Ayes-Five. Motion carried. 
 
Discussion-UTV Ordinance. Mayor Faas discussed the possibility of an UTV ordinance and the concerns 
with licensing. The Mayor explained that if we were to proceed the city would need to issue their own 
license. Councilman Nichols stated concern with the ordinance as we have had issues with snowmobiles 
in the past. The Mayor questioned Police Chief, Jeff Jensen on his position with the ordinance. Jensen 
responded that he has looked over UTV owned by Mark Brown, of Elk Run Heights and it seemed safe 
and road worthy. Mr. Brown discussed the equipment added to come into compliance with Elk Run 
Heights requests. Councilman Walker asked if they are licensed vehicles. Mr. Brown responded no, not at 
this time. Councilman Dewater questioned if there would be restricted streets for the UTV’s as we have 
with golf carts. Nichols stated he feels the UTV’s should be licensed in our City. The Mayor proposed a 
$25.00 license fee. Walked stated if we approve this he would like for it to be revisited in 1 year and see 
the problems we had, if any. City will put a draft on next agenda.  
 
Mayor/Council Reports: Mayor Faas discussed the following items: a meeting would be held on Thursday 
April 20th for the NE Corridor Study; MPO committed $280,000 for engineering only on the Lafayette Road 
Construction Project for calendar year 2020; Trail and Elmer storm water line wasn’t flowing properly due 
to a 18” force main punched through storm water system, this could cost roughly $35,000-$40,000 if not 
more to repair. Councilman Dewater question if it would be easier to move storm sewer. Heather, CGA 
explained why it would be easier to move sewer pipe rather than storm sewer. Mayor Faas discussed River 
Forest Rd Project, Stating MidAmerican Energy is going to move some poles and the hydro seeding is to 
follow; The Michigan Ave. lift station pumps will ship in 2 weeks and the project cost is at approx. $33,000. 
The Mayor also again asked for names from council members for the comprehensive plan committee. 
Councilman Walker stated that the blinking light on the stop sign at the corner of Evansdale Drive/McCoy 
Rd. wasn’t working. Councilman Nichols questioned why there were trees taken down at City Hall. The 
Mayor explained that they were old ash trees that were dying and the DNR recommended it. Councilman 
Seible questioned cars that are for sale parking on the grass again. The Mayor responded that we have 
discussed this several times and this pertains to vehicles for sale and there is a gentlemen’s agreement that 
if the lawn is groomed around the vehicle than it is acceptable. The Mayor responded that if the Council 
would like he will let the Code Enforcement Officer know that parking on the grass isn’t acceptable at any 



time. Councilman Loftus stated we are getting too nitpicky on some of the Ordinances. The Council agreed 
that cars should not park in grass for any reason from this point forward.  
 
There being no further discussion, Loftus/Walker to adjourn the meeting at 7:41 p.m. Motion carried.  
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________  _________________________________ 
Doug Faas, Mayor    DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 



License Application (
Applicant

Name of Applicant: Sunshine Enterprises, Inc.

Name of Business (DBA): Station Mart Liquor & Tobacco 

Address of Premises: 1119 River Forest Road

City
:

Evansdale Zip: 50707

State
:

IA

County: Black Hawk

Business 
Phone:

(319) 232-2290

Mailing 
Address:

1119 River Forest Road

City
:

Evansdale Zip: 50707

)

Contact Person

Name
:

Haji Hadayat Ali

Phone: (319) 232-2290 Email 
Address:

toba786@gmail.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Privately Held Corporation

Corporate ID Number: 395961 Federal Employer ID 
#:

27-2293363

Insurance Company Information

Policy Effective Date: 05/06/2017  Policy Expiration 
Date:

01/01/1900  

Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective 
Date:

Outdoor Service Expiration 
Date:

Temp Transfer Effective 
Date:

Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 
Continuously:

2

Insurance Company: CNA Surety

Effective Date: 05/06/2018  

Expiration Date:

Classification
:

Class E Liquor License (LE)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Class E Liquor License (LE)

Faiza Farooqui

First Name: Faiza Last Name: Farooqui

City: Cedar Falls State: Iowa Zip: 50613

Position: President 

% of Ownership: 100.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

 LE0001664 



License Application (
Applicant

Name of Applicant: Sunshine Enterprises, Inc.

Name of Business (DBA): Station Mart Liquor & Tobacco

Address of Premises: 3594 Lafayette Street

City
:

Evansdale Zip: 50707

State
:

IA

County: Black Hawk

Business 
Phone:

(319) 232-1589

Mailing 
Address:

3594 Lafayette Street

City
:

Evansdale Zip: 50707

)

Contact Person

Name
:

Haji Hadayat Ali

Phone: (319) 232-1589 Email 
Address:

toba786@gmail.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Privately Held Corporation

Corporate ID Number: 395961 Federal Employer ID 
#:

27-2293363

Insurance Company Information

Policy Effective Date: Policy Expiration 
Date:
Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective 
Date:

Outdoor Service Expiration 
Date:

Temp Transfer Effective 
Date:

Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 
Continuously:

Insurance Company:

Effective Date: 05/06/2017  

Expiration Date:

Classification
:

Class E Liquor License (LE)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Class E Liquor License (LE)

Haji Hadayat

First Name: Haji Last Name: Hadayat

City: Cedar Falls State: Iowa Zip: 50613

Position: President

% of Ownership: 100.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

 LE0001663 













Doug, and Chris, 
 
Please see the cost estimate below for testing and disposal of the material located at the abandoned 
maintenance shop next to your office.  This pricing is based upon the sample coming back as oil, 
gasoline, antifreeze, and water. 
 
Sampling - $525.00 
Disposal - $0.50 per gallon 
Truck for material removal - $135.00 per hour from portal to portal.  I would estimate a total of 5 hours 
to complete the removal. 
 
Based upon having 250 gallons your total cost for this work will be $1,325.00 
 
If you approve this estimate we should be able to get the sample pulled next week.  Typically it will take 
us about 1 week to get the results of that sample.  Once we receive the results we will schedule the pick 
up of the material. 
 
Please let me know what your thoughts are. 
 
Kevin Allen 
kallen@wcec.com 
515-954-8313 
 

 
 

mailto:kallen@wcec.com


              RESOLUTION  6067
    A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF EVANSDALE, IOWA, THAT 

 THE FOLLOWING BILLS BE PAID AND THE TRANSFERS ARE HEREBY ALLOWED.

ADVANCED SYSTEMS FD-COPIER CONTRACT 33.60      
ALLEN HOSPITAL FD-PRE EMPLOYMENT PHYSICAL 139.00     
ANNIS PETROLEUM PROD RU-KEROSENE/POWER WASHER 51.80       
ASPRO RU-COLD MIX 330.75     

RU-COLD PATCH 652.05    
RU-RECLAIM ASHPHALT 777.92    
TOTAL: 1,760.72  

B & B BUILDERS & SPLY SW-R/R STRM-GRAND/ E END 850.00     
B.H. CO LANDFILL DEBRIS RMVL 3573 LAFAYETTE 68.88  

DEBRIS RMVL 3573 LAFAYETTE 35.23  
DEBRIS RMVL 3573 LAFAYETTE 94.00  
TOTAL: 198.11     

B.H. ELECTRICAL RU-CK 2 ST LIGHTS/LAFAYETT 208.50     
BLAZEK CORP SR-MICHIGAN LIFT STATION PUMP 6,130.00  
BMC AGG RU-RV DUMP STATION 153.10     

RU-RV DUMP STATION 189.47     
RU-SAND TO MIX W/ SALT 240.58     
SR-3/4" ROADSTONE 432.01    
TOTAL: 1,015.16  

BOUND TREE MED FD-RTRN CONVERSION CABLE (262.99)    
FD-MEDICAL SUPPLIES 193.25     
FD-RPLC EXPRD EPI PENS 529.99     
TOTAL: 460.25     

CENTURY LINK SR-INTERNET 78.99      
CHRISTIE DOOR CO RU-OPENER INSTALLATION #2 755.00     
CITY OF WATERLOO AC-ASSIST CAPTURE K9 70.06  

RU-JAN-MAR MNTYLY INSPC 630.00     
RU-REPAIRS/RPLC LED BULBS 104.14     
TOTAL: 804.20     

CGA MEYERS LAKE PUMP 6,041.50  
LEVEE MAINTENANCE 8,620.80  
2017 STREETS REHAB #2 41,235.00     
COLLEEN ST RECON 12,375.00     
RFR RECON 4,141.51  
TOTAL: 72,413.81     

COLWELL FORD RU-ELECTRIC RPAIR #64 94.00      
COURIER PY-4/4 MINS & BILLS 167.79     
COVENANT MEDICAL FD-DRUG KIT 53.09  
EMERGENCY MEDICAL PROD FD-MEDICAL SUPPLIES 104.89     
ERA SR-TESTING SPLYS-LAB 285.46     
GOINZ GRAF-X PD-GOLF CART PERMITS 50.00  
GOODYEAR TIRE RU-TIRE REPAIR/FINISH MOWER 76.50  
GROSSE STEEL RU-BOLLARDS/RV LIFT STATION 640.00     
I.N.R.C.O.G. CDBG PROJ MGMT FEES 61.24       

CDBG PROJ MGMT FEES 196.82     
TOTAL: 258.06     

IOWA WALL RU-DUMP STATION 350.00     
KOBLISKA, DEANNE RMBRS TRVL-KOBLISKA 181.94     
MARC SR-GRAN DSCHRG/GREASE BUSTER 470.00     
MEDIACOM BI-INTERNET 41.18       

PY-INTERNET 41.18      
RU-INTERNET 41.18      
SR-INTERNET 41.18      
TOTAL: 164.72     

MENARDS RU-2X12 ISLND FRMS@RV DMP 168.94     
RU-2X12 ISLND FRMS@RV DMP 33.78       
TOTAL: 202.72     

P & K MIDWEST SR-RPAIR ACCLRTR/'12 JD TRACTOR 466.17     
POSTMASTER PD-POSTAGE 94.00  
QUAD CO FIRE SCHOOL FD-FIRE SCHOOL 50.00  
RADIO COMMUNICATIONS EM-544 GRAND SIREN REPAIR 877.60     
SCOT'S SUPPLY RU-RPLCE HOSE #54 27.29       
STOCKS, PHIL SR-GRADE III OPERATOR SRV 600.00     
SUPERIOR WELDING FD-OXYGEN #237 39.24  
TEAM SERVICES CORE SAMPLES-2017 ST RECON 1,048.70  

APPROVED BY
COUNCIL
VERBAL 3/8/17

APPROVED BY
COUNCIL
7/19/16

APPROVED BY
COUNCIL 
7/19/16

APPROVED BY 
COUNCIL 
7/19/16

APPROVED BY 
COUNCIL 
2/21/17



TIFCO IND RU-HOSE ENDS/HYDROLICS 987.43     
TYLER TECH FY18-SOFTWARE MAINT 4,267.74  
U.S. CELLULAR BI- CELL PHONE 31.63       

PK-CELL PHONE 36.74       
CH-CELL PHONE 72.12       
RU- CELL PHONE 184.54     
SR- CELL PHONE 53.52  
TOTAL: 378.55     

UNIV OF IA HOSPITALS FD-CEH HOURS 20.00      
UTILITY EQUIPMENT CO RU-RV DMP STN MATERIALS 102.11     

RU-RV DUMP STN 18.77  
SR-LAFAYETTE SEWER REPAIR 237.81     
TOTAL: 358.69     

VERIZON FD-AMBULANCE CELL 42.93      
WEBER PAPER PD-FLOOR CLEANER 15.48  

FD-FLOOR CLEANER 15.47  
TOTAL: 30.95      

001  GENERAL FUND 7,104.04  
005  STREETS 15,604.94     
110  ROAD USE TAX 5,875.21  
145  CDBG/REHAB PROGRAM 258.06     
302  2015 CAPITAL PROJECTS 58,800.21     
610  SEWER FUND 8,795.14       
740  STORM WATER 850.00     
GRAND TOTAL: 97,287.60     

PREPAYS
80887 BAKER & TAYLOR LIB-MATERIALS 2,065.18  
80888 CAPITAL ONE BANK LIB-MATERIALS 22.83      
80889 DEMCO LIB-BK MRKS/STICKERS/MISC 323.40    
80890 DR. OZ THE GOOD LIFE LIB-2 YR SUBSCIPTION 25.00      
80891 GROUT MUSEUM DISTRICT LIB-PROJECTS 350.00    
80892 HOUSE BEAUTIFUL LIB-2 YR SUBSCRIPTION 14.97       
80893 INGRAM LIBRARY SRV LIB-BOOKS 790.80     
80896 MEDIACOM FD-INTERNET 37.95       

PD-INTERNET 37.95       
RU-DORRIS DR INTERNET 65.90       
TOTAL: 141.80     

80898 MUTUAL WHEEL CO RU-RTRND VEHICLE INSP FORM (32.89)      
RU-VEHICLE INSPECTION FORM 35.88       
TOTAL: 2.99   

80899 NATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS LIB-BOOKS 49.90       
80900 WINDSTREAM PHONES 547.27     
80901 FIRST SECURITY STATE BANK PY-PURCHASE 3573 LAFAYETTE RD 116,728.74   
80902 COLLECTION SRV SR-P/R DEDUCTION 188.80     
DRAFT ADVANTAGE ADMIN HRA FEES/DEDUCT EXPENSE 1,968.52  
80903 AFLAC P/R DEDUCT 60.02       
80904 IBEW LOCAL 288 P/R DEDUCT 163.00     
80905 IPERS RETIREMENT 6,492.16  
80909 METLIFE LIFE/VISION/DENTAL INSURANCE 2,421.77       
80910 MFPRSI RETIREMENT 9,205.88       
80911 POLICE ASSOC P/R DEDUCT 70.00      
80912 TREASURER-ST OF IA P/R DEDUCT 2,688.00       
80914 TEAMSTERS P/R DEDUCT 301.00    
80915 VALIC P/R DEDUCT 50.00      
80916 WELLMARK BCBS HEALTH INSURANCE 12,853.04     

TOTAL PREPAYS: 157,525.07   

APRIL PAYROLL
EFTPS 18,252.17     
FIRE PAYROLL 2,092.63  
BIWEEKLY PAYROLL 49,854.76     
TOTAL 70,199.56     

 PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF EVANSDALE,  IOWA, ON THIS 2ND 
   DAY OF MAY 2017.

    ATTEST:

APPROVED BY 
COUNCIL
7/19/16
APPROVED BY
COUNCIL 
4/18/17





















































 
 

 CITY OF EVANSDALE 
 

Memo  
To:  Gentlemen of Council  

From:  Mayor Faas 

Date:  04/27/2017 

Re:  Safety Traffic Signal @ Roosevelt/Lafayette Roads 

Council Members: 
 
I tried to get “apples to apples” bids as much as possible for the flashing school zone speed limit signs. 
 
The quote from Tapco is fairly easy to understand.  They will provide the materials needed for a total price of $7,470.  
This appears to be the solar flashing units and mounting poles only; the city will have to provide the speed limit signs.  
Chris estimates the costs for two signs in the $250 to $300 range. Their system uses a flashing bar instead of the 
system currently being used on Evansdale Drive. 
 
The quote from Traffic Safety is the best I could get from them after numerous emails.  I am recommending that the 
city consider item number SI-TS40551S6A (365-day programmable timer) for a cost of $5,240.  The push button 
option is not available with the 365-day timer. 
 
An alternative to the 365-day timer option is item number SI-TS4055159A (7-day programmable timer) for a cost of 
$4,730; adding the push button option would be additional $290, bringing the total cost of this alternative to $5,020. 
 
Both of the Traffic Safety signs are of a design similar to the stop sign on Evansdale Drive, LED lights encircling the 
speed limit sign.  The cost includes the signs, but not the poles. Chris estimates the cost for two poles to meet Traffic 
Safety specifications will be in the $400 to $550 range. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Doug 
 
 
 









ORDINANCE 649 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF EVANSDALE, IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, BY ADDING A NEW 
SECTION NOISE AND VIBRATIONS 
 
BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Evansdale, Iowa: 

 
SECTION 1.  NEW SECTION.  The Code of Ordinances of the City of Evansdale, 
Iowa, is amended by adding new Section 40.06, entitled NOISE & VIBRATIONS, which 
is hereby adopted to read as follows:   
  

40.06 NOISE & VIBRATIONS.   
1.  Prohibited Noises Generally.  

A.  Standards for determination of violation. It shall be unlawful for 
any person to permit, make, continue or cause any excessive or unusually 
loud noise or any noise which annoys, disturbs, injures or endangers the 
comfort, repose, health, peace or safety of others within the limits of the 
City. The standards which shall be considered in determining whether a 
violation exists shall include the following: 

     i.     The sound pressure level of the noise 
    ii.    Whether the origin of the noise is natural or manmade. 
    iii.   The sound pressure level of the background noise. 

iv.   The proximity of the noise to residential sleeping 
facilities. 

      v.    The nature and zoning of the area within which the noise 
   emanates. 

      vi.   The time of the day or night the noise occurs. 
      vii.  Whether the noise is recurrent, intermittent or constant. 

B.  Enumeration of prohibited acts. Each of the following acts, 
among others, is hereby declared to be in violation of this article and is 
prohibited. The following enumerated acts shall not be construed as 
limiting or precluding enforcement of any other provision of this article. 

   i. Loud operation of radios, etc. The using, operating or 
permitting to be placed, used or operated of any radio receiving 
set, musical instrument, or other machine or device for the 
providing or reproducing of sound in such manner as to disturb 
the peace, quiet and comfort of the neighboring inhabitants. 
ii. Operation of defective or improperly loaded vehicle. The 
use of any automobile, motorcycle or vehicle so out of repair or 
so loaded in such manner as to create loud and unnecessary 
grating, grinding, rattling or other noise. 
iii. Creation of noise near schools or churches. The creation 
of loud and excessive noise on any street adjacent to any school, 
institution of learning, or church while the school, institution, or 
church are in use, which unreasonably interferes with the 
workings of such institution or which disturbs or unduly annoys 
those using the buildings. 
iv. Repairing vehicle during certain hours. The repair or 
rebuilding of any motor vehicle within any residential area of the 
city between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. in such a 



manner that the reasonable person of normal sensitivities 
residing in the area is caused discomfort or annoyance. 
v. Discharge of unmuffled exhaust. The discharge into the 
open air of the exhaust of any steam engine, internal combustion 
engine, motorboat or motor vehicle, or discharge of air or other 
gases, except through a muffler or other device which will 
effectively prevent loud or explosive noises therefrom. 
vi. Unnecessary use of engine breaks. The use of a Jacob 
brake or any other engine brake within the City limits, except as 
required for safety purposes. 

2. Group Noise. When a group of persons act together to create noise, each 
individual shall be deemed responsible as though solely the principal person producing 
the resultant noise. 
3. Noise from Motor Vehicles. It shall be unlawful for any person to operate, or 
for the owner to cause or permit to be operated within the public right-of-way in this 
city, any motor vehicle which emits a noise in excess of 75 decibels measured at a 
distance of twenty-five feet.  

A. Measurement. The sound level shall be measured on a sound 
level meter of standard design and quality operated on the “A” slow 
response weighting scale.  
B. This section applies to the total noise form a motor vehicle and 
shall not be construed as limiting or precluding the enforcement of any 
other provisions of this ordinance. 
C. Exceptions. The requirements, prohibitions, and terms of this 
section shall not apply to: 

i. Emergency work or any authorized emergency vehicle, 
when responding to an emergency call or acting in time of 
emergency; 
ii. Activities of a temporary duration, permitted by law, and 
for which a license or permit therefore has been granted by the 
city, including but not limited to parades; 
iii. Reasonable or ordinary noises associated with athletic 
contest or lawful public meetings, parades, or celebrations; 
iv. Noises from construction, landscaping, lawn care and 
maintenance between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m.; 

 v. Construction work; 
vi. All other authorized activities occurring on government 
property. 

D.          Right to additional test.  Where a motor vehicle is deemed to be in 
violation of this section, the owner thereof may transport it to a central 
testing location, the location to be determined by the chief of police, where 
such vehicle may be tested under normal operating conditions for further 
evaluation. If the vehicle is reevaluated and found not to be in violation of 
the decibel standards as outlined, no further proceedings shall be instituted 
and any citation issued shall be dismissed. All costs of retesting shall be 
borne by the owner of the vehicle being tested. 

4. Vibrations. Any vibration that can be felt beyond the property line in any zoning 
district, whether manufacturing, business, commercial or residential, is in violation of 
this article, and no instrument is needed to make a determination of the vibration. 

 
SECTION 2: REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the 



provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance 
shall be adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
ordinance as a whole or any section, provision, or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 

 
SECTION 4:   WHEN EFFECTIVE.  This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval, and publication as provided by law. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE EVANSDALE CITY COUNCIL ON THIS ____ DAY 
OF ______ 2017.      

                                                                                                  First Reading:  04/18/17   
                                                                                                  Second Reading:   
                                                                                                  Third Reading:    
 
  ATTEST: 
 
             _______________________________                
 Doug Faas, Mayor    DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 
 
 

I certify that the foregoing was published as Ordinance 649 on the _____ day of ___________, 
2017.  

__________________________ 
DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE 650 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
EVANSDALE, IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, BY AMENDING NUISANCE 
ABATEMENT PROCEDURE 
 
BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Evansdale, Iowa: 
 
SECTION 1. SECTION MODIFIED. Section 50.02 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Evansdale, Iowa, is repealed and the following adopted in lieu thereof: 

50.02    NUISANCES ENUMERATED.  The following subsections include, but do 
not limit, the conditions which are deemed to be nuisances in the City:  

1. Offensive Smells.  Erecting, continuing or using any building or other place 
for the exercise of any trade, employment or manufacture, which, by occasioning 
noxious exhalations, unreasonably offensive smells, or other annoyances, becomes 
injurious and dangerous to the health, comfort or property of individuals or the 
public.  

2. Filth or Noisome Substance.  Causing or suffering any offal, filth, or 
noisome substance to be collected or to remain in any place to the prejudice of others. 

3. Impeding Passage of Navigable River.  Obstructing or impeding without 
legal authority the passage of any navigable river, harbor, or collection of water. 

4. Water Pollution.  Corrupting or rendering unwholesome or impure the water 
of any river, stream, or pond, or unlawfully diverting the same from its natural course 
or state, to the injury or prejudice of others.  

5. Blocking Public and Private Ways.  Obstructing or encumbering, by fences, 
buildings or otherwise, the public roads, private ways, streets, alleys, commons, 
landing places, or burying grounds.  

6. Billboards.  Billboards, signboards and advertising signs, whether erected 
and constructed on public or private property, which so obstruct and impair the view 
of any portion or part of a public street, avenue, highway, boulevard or alley or of a 
railroad or street railway track as to render dangerous the use thereof.  (See also 
Section 62.08.)  

7. Storing of Flammable Junk.  Depositing or storing of flammable junk, such 
as old rags, rope, cordage, rubber, bones and paper, by dealers in such articles within 
the fire limits of the City, unless in a building of fireproof construction.  (See also 
Chapter 51.)  

8. Air Pollution.  Emission of dense smoke, noxious fumes, or fly ash. 

9. Weeds, Brush.  Dense growth of all weeds, vines, brush, or other vegetation 
in the City so as to constitute a health, safety, or fire hazard.  (See also Chapter 52.) 

10. Dutch Elm Disease.  Trees infected with Dutch elm disease.  (See also 
Chapter 151.) 

11. Airport Air Space.  Any object or structure hereafter erected within one 
thousand (1,000) feet of the limits of any municipal or regularly established airport 
or landing place, which may endanger or obstruct aerial navigation including take-



off and landing, unless such object or structure constitutes a proper use or enjoyment 
of the land on which the same is located. 

12. Houses of Ill Fame.  Houses of ill fame, kept for the purpose of prostitution 
and lewdness; gambling houses; places resorted to by persons participating in 
criminal gang activity prohibited by Chapter 723A of the Code of Iowa or places 
resorted to by persons using controlled substances, as defined in Section 124.101 of 
the Code of Iowa, in violation of law, or houses where drunkenness, quarreling, 
fighting or breaches of the peace are carried on or permitted to the disturbance of 
others. 

13. Real property maintained in such condition as it becomes so defective, 
unsightly, or in such condition of deterioration or disrepair that the same causes 
substantial depreciation of the property values of the surrounding properties or is 
materially detrimental to properties and improvements. 

14. Any area located outside of any building or structure on private property, 
whose sidewalks, walkways, stairs, driveways, parking lots, parking spaces or 
similar areas are not kept in a proper state of repair, or are not maintained free from 
hazardous conditions. Hazardous conditions include, but are not limited to, poor 
lighting in parking lots, missing or severely cracked pavement, pot holes, and 
unnecessary obstacles. 

15. Creating, maintaining, causing or allowing to exist for a continuous period 
of more than 30 days or without a valid permit any man-made excavation, hole, or 
other depression in the ground in or on any lot or parcel of land in the City of a depth 
of more than three feet below the surrounding grade, other than as part of the active 
construction of a building or other structure on the lot which will ultimately close in 
and completely cover such excavation, hole or depression.  

16. Creating, maintaining, causing or allowing to exist a man-made excavation 
that is not protected with adequate barricades, fencing, and warning lights meeting 
standards specified by the City from the time the excavation work is started until it 
is completed to the satisfaction of the City Inspector. 

17. All structures, both commercial and residential, including detached 
accessory structures on any commercial, residential, agricultural, or industrial 
property shall be free of significant defects. The phrase “free from significant 
structural defects” means: 

 A. The roof and roofing material are of such a nature and condition 
that they do not permit water, snow or ice to penetrate into the structure. 
Roofing materials shall be in good condition and made up of consistent 
materials and consistent coloration throughout the roof area. 

 B. Drainage gutters and downspouts are securely attached to the 
structure and in proper functioning order. 

 C. All exterior exposed surfaces, including siding materials, must be 
sound, in good condition and securely attached to the structure. 

 D. Exterior walls must be free of holes and made of a consistent 
material, such that patches or repairs consisting of dissimilar materials or 
colors compared to the prevailing surface material of the exterior walls are 
not present. 



 E. The foundation of the structure is sound, capable of supporting the 
structure and not deteriorated to the point that failure is judged to be 
inevitable, but not necessarily imminent. The foundation shall be plumb and 
free from cracks, breaks and holes so as to prevent the entry of animals. 

  F.  Windows and doors, including outer screen or storm 
windows and doors, must be intact, containing no holes, squarely hung with 
properly operating latches or locks so as to be securely closed, and where 
the windows have intact glass or normal window material that allows the 
entry of light with no holes in said window surface areas. 

 G. All points of egress/ingress into and out of the structure must be 
of a secure and safe design and made of standard building materials and must 
also provide clear and easy access via properly installed steps, porches, 
entryway landings and hand rails that are intact, with no protruding or loose 
boards or surface materials causing a hazard, and which provide ready access 
to all points of entry into the structure. 

 H. Exterior wall surfaces are properly painted and/or maintained with 
appropriate exterior wall materials, including wood, vinyl, steel or metal 
siding materials, stucco or exterior insulation finish system materials, brick 
or similar masonry materials, that are in all cases intact, not in a condition 
of deterioration, are of uniform coloration and are not patched with 
dissimilar materials, Plastic wrap material shall not be considered to be an 
acceptable siding material. No flaking or chipped paint or outer loose 
material dominates or detracts from the exterior appearance of the structure. 

 I.  All fencing, including gates, shall be maintained in good 
condition, free from damage, breaks, holes or missing structural members. 
All fencing shall be of consistent materials and coloration. 

 J.  Detached accessory structures, including garages and storage 
sheds, must conform to the standards outlined above. In addition, all doors 
and windows must be of functional design and materials and in proper 
working order. No plastic wrap material or tarps shall be used to substitute 
for doorways or windows. 

 K. All exterior wires which are hanging or unsecured on the exterior 
of the structure must be fastened to the structure in order to avoid life safety 
issues. 

 L. Reconstruction and repair: materials and practices used in the 
reconstruction or repair of any building structure, whether of roofing 
materials, siding materials, foundation, walls, windows, doorways, 
entryways or detached accessory structures shall be of standard quality and 
appearance, consistent with currently applicable International Building 
Code requirements and consistent with the appearance and character of the 
structure under repair and consistent with other properties in the immediate 
vicinity of the premises. 

 M. Vacant structures: all vacant structures shall comply with the 
above-cited maintenance provisions with the exception that windows and 
doors may be secured with boards or other materials intended to provide 
security and protection to the structure. All vandalized portions of the 



structure must be promptly repaired, including repainting areas that are 
defaced with paint or graffiti. 

18. Any freestanding or attached portable shelter on residential property 
consisting of a fabric covering stretched over poles. 

19. Any hazardous thing or condition on property which may contribute to 
injury of any person present on the property, including but not limited to open holes, 
open foundations, open wells, or dangerous trees or limbs. 

20. Residing in, or living in, or using for night-time living accommodation 
purposes, such as sleeping activities, a tent, camper, motor home, travel trailer, 
recreational vehicle, or any other vehicle on any private property in the City for a 
period of more than 7 days. 

21. Storage of lawn mowers and snow blowers outdoors is deemed to be a 
nuisance subject to the following exceptions: 

A. A maximum of two lawn mowers on property zoned for 
residential use shall not be deemed a nuisance. 
B. A maximum of two snow blowers on property zoned for 
residential use shall not be deemed a nuisance. 

22. Storage of vehicles (as defined in Chapter 51) outdoors, including trailers, 
wagons, and other nonmotorized vehicles is deemed to be a nuisance subject to the 
following exceptions: 

A. Vehicles on property zoned for residential use that are (i) parked 
on a hard surface of asphalt, concrete, or at least 3 inches of gravel; and (ii) 
moved or used as an operating vehicle at least every 15 days shall not be 
deemed a nuisance. 
B. Vehicles on property zoned for commercial use that are (i) 
parked on a hard surface of asphalt, concrete, or at least 3 inches of gravel; 
and (ii) moved or used as an operating vehicle at least every 60 days shall 
not be deemed a nuisance. 
C. Vehicles kept in commercial automobile salvage yards lawfully 
operated within the City shall not be deemed a nuisance. 
D. One motorized boat on its trailer, which is currently licensed for 
operation on the public highways, parked on a hard surface of asphalt, 
concrete, or at least 3 inches of gravel shall not be deemed a nuisance. 
E. One motor home, pickup truck with camper top, or similar 
recreational vehicle or fifth-wheel per residential property, which is 
currently licensed for operation on the public highways, parked on a hard 
surface of asphalt, concrete, or at least 3 inches of gravel shall not be deemed 
a nuisance. 
F.  Up to two utility trailers may be parked on a hard surface of 
asphalt, concrete, or at least 3 inches of gravel shall not be deemed a 
nuisance. “Utility trailer” means a vehicle, without motive power, designed 
and used to carry motor vehicles, goods, or materials. The utility trailer may 
not exceed 8 feet in width nor 3,500 pounds in weight, and it must be 
licensed and registered for highway use.  
G. A vehicle currently licensed for operation on the public highways 
and lawfully parked off the streets while the owner or other person in lawful 
possession and control thereof, if a resident of this city, is out of the city for 



more than fifteen (15) days but not more than one hundred eighty (180) days 
shall not be deemed a nuisance. 
H. Whenever a vehicle is required by this Chapter to be parked on 
asphalt, concrete, or gravel, such asphalt, concrete or gravel shall not contain 
shrubbery, weeds or grass. 
I.  A wagon or other nonmotorized vehicle that is displayed as a 
decorative, tasteful lawn ornament shall not be deemed a nuisance. 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 657.2) 
 

SECTION 2. SECTION MODIFIED. Section 50.03 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of  
    Evansdale, Iowa, is repealed and the following adopted in lieu thereof: 

50.03    OTHER CONDITIONS.  The following chapters of this Code of 
Ordinances contain regulations prohibiting or restricting other conditions which are 
deemed to be nuisances: 

1. Public Peace (See Chapter 40) 

2. Junk and Junk Vehicles (See Chapter 51) 

3. Weeds (See Chapter 52) 

4. Construction and Maintenance of Building Sewers (See Chapter 96) 

5. Storage and Disposal of Solid Waste (See Chapter 105) 

6. Trees (See Chapter 151) 

 
SECTION 3. SECTION MODIFIED. Section 50.06 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Evansdale, Iowa, is repealed and the following adopted in lieu thereof: 

50.06     ABATEMENT OF NUISANCE BY WRITTEN NOTICE.  Any 
nuisance, public or private, may be abated in the manner provided for in this section: 

 1. Contents of Notice to Property Owner.  The notice to abate shall contain: 
†   

 A. Description of Nuisance.  A description of what constitutes the 
nuisance. 

 B. Location of Nuisance.  The location of the nuisance.  

 C. Acts Necessary to Abate.  A statement of the act or acts necessary 
to abate the nuisance. 

 D. Reasonable Time.  A statement that the property owner has 
fourteen days within which to complete the abatement.  

 E. Assessment of City Costs.  A statement that if the nuisance or 
condition is not abated as directed and no request for hearing is made 
within the time prescribed, the City will abate it and assess the costs 
against the property owner. 

 2.  Method of Service.  The notice shall be sent by certified mail to the 
property owner. 

 3.  Request for Hearing.  Any person ordered to abate a nuisance may have a 
hearing with the Council as to whether a nuisance exists.  A request for a hearing 



must be made in writing and delivered to the Clerk within the time stated in the 
notice, or it will be conclusively presumed that a nuisance exists and it must be 
abated as ordered.  The hearing will be before the Council at a time and place fixed 
by the Council.  The findings of the Council shall be conclusive and, if a nuisance is 
found to exist, it shall be ordered abated within a reasonable time under the 
circumstances. 

4.  Abatement in Emergency.  If it is determined that an emergency exists by 
reason of the continuing maintenance of the nuisance or condition, the City may 
perform any action which may be required under this chapter without prior notice.  
The City shall assess the costs as provided in subsection 6 of this section after notice 
to the property owner under the applicable provisions of subsection 1 and 2, and the 
hearing as provided in subsection 3. 

5.  Abatement by City.  If the person notified to abate a nuisance or condition 
neglects or fails to abate as directed, the City may perform the required action to 
abate, keeping an accurate account of the expense incurred.  The itemized expense 
account shall be filed with the Clerk, who shall pay such expenses on behalf of the 
City.  

6.  Collection of Costs.  The Clerk shall send a statement of the total expense 
incurred by certified mail to the property owner who has failed to abide by the notice 
to abate, and if the amount shown by the statement has not been paid within one 
month, the Clerk shall certify the costs to the County Treasurer and such costs shall 
then be collected with, and in the same manner as, general property taxes.  

7.  Installment Payment of Cost of Abatement.  If the amount expended to 
abate the nuisance or condition exceeds one hundred dollars ($100.00), the City may 
permit the assessment to be paid in up to ten (10) annual installments, to be paid in 
the same manner and with the same interest rates provided for assessments against 
benefited property under State law.  

8.  Failure to Abate.  Any person causing or maintaining a nuisance who shall 
fail or refuse to abate or remove the same within the time required and specified in 
the notice to abate is in violation of this Code of Ordinances. Each day the person 
permits the violation to continue after the time specified in the notice shall be a new 
violation of this chapter. 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 364.12(3)(h) and 364.13) 
 

SECTION 4.  SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance 
shall be adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
ordinance as a whole or any section, provision, or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional.   

 
SECTION 5:   WHEN EFFECTIVE.  This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval, and publication as provided by law. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE EVANSDALE CITY COUNCIL ON THIS ____ DAY 
_________ OF 2017.      

                                                                                                  First Reading:  4/18/17   
                                                                                                  Second Reading:   

                                                                                                  Third Reading: 
                                                                 ATTEST: 



 
             _______________________________                
 Doug Faas, Mayor    DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 

 
I certify that the foregoing was published as Ordinance 650 on the _____ day of ___________, 
2017.  

__________________________ 
DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE 651 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
EVANSDALE, IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, BY AMENDING JUNK AND JUNK 
VEHICLES 
 
BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Evansdale, Iowa: 
 
SECTION 1. SECTION MODIFIED. Section 51.01 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Evansdale, Iowa, is repealed and the following adopted in lieu thereof: 
 
             51.01    DEFINITIONS.  For use in this chapter, the following terms are defined: 

1. “Abandoned Vehicle” means: 
A. A vehicle which has been left unattended on public property for more than 

forty-eight hours and lacks current registration plates or two or more wheels, or other parts 
which render the vehicle inoperable, or 

B. A vehicle that has remained illegally on public property for more than 
seventy-two hours, or 

C. A vehicle that has been unlawfully parked on private property or has been 
placed on private property without the consent of the owner or person in the control of the 
property for more than twenty-four hours, or 

D. A vehicle that has been legally impounded by order of the department and 
has not been reclaimed for a period of ten days, or 

E. Any vehicle parked on the highway determined by the department to create 
a hazard to other vehicle traffic. 
2. “Enclosed Structure” means any permanent structure built for the enclosure of 
property, which contains a roof and at least four exterior walls constructed in such a manner 
as to obscure from a person’s view from any street or adjacent property the contents within 
the structure. A vehicle is not an enclosed structure. 
3. “Junk” means the following items stored in outdoor areas or in partially enclosed 
sheds, lean-tos or other structures that do not meet the definition of Enclosed Structure: 
building materials not part of an active building project authorized by a current city 
building permit; abandoned, inoperable, or junk vehicles; non-registered or unlicensed 
vehicles; auto parts; miscellaneous steel, plastic, rubber or metal parts; junk tires; packing 
boxes; wood pallets; tree limbs; brush piles; discarded lumber, not including neatly stacked 
firewood located on a side yard or a rear yard; broken or unused furniture and appliances; 
any upholstered or finished furniture intended for indoor usage such as couches, beds, 
mattresses, desks, chairs, shelving or wooden tables; broken or unused household 
furnishings or equipment including carpeting, appliances and other typical household items 
intended for indoor usage; plastic tarps; trash bags containing leaves, debris, garbage or 
other items; trash and garbage not properly contained within a trash disposal container; 
bicycles deemed by the City to be not roadworthy that are not being used as a tasteful lawn 
decoration; or any other discarded or miscellaneous item or items not normally required in 
the day to day use of the exterior area of the property, when stored continuously in excess 
of 48 hours on any portion of any property outside of a totally enclosed structure located 
on the property. 
4. “Junk Vehicle” means any vehicle, trailer or semitrailer stored 48 hours within the 
City limits, whether currently licensed or not, which because of any one of the following 
characteristics constitutes a threat to public health, welfare, and/or safety: 

A. Any vehicle, trailer, or semitrailer which has a missing or broken 
windshield or window glass, fender, door, bumper, hood, steering wheel, driver’s 



seat, trunk, fuel tank, two or more wheels, engine, drive shaft, differential, battery, 
generator or alternator or other component part of an electrical system, or any 
component or structural part, rendering said vehicle inoperable; or 
B. Any vehicle, trailer or semitrailer which has become the habitat of rats, 
mice, snakes or any other vermin or insects; or 
C. Any vehicle, trailer or semitrailer which contains stored gasoline or other 
flammable fuel, paper, cardboard, wood or other combustible materials, garbage, 
refuse, solid waste, debris, etc.; or 
D. Any vehicle, trailer or semitrailer used for storage purposes or harborage, 
cage or dwelling for animals of any kinds; or 
E. Any other vehicle, trailer or semitrailer which because of its defective or 
obsolete condition in any other way constitutes a threat to the public health or 
safety of the citizens of Evansdale, Iowa; or 
F. Any vehicle which is uninsured or in violation of the laws of the State of 
Iowa, or which for any reason is uninsurable. 

5. “Nuisance” means whatever is injurious to health, indecent, or offensive to the 
senses, or obstruction to the free use of property, so as essentially to interfere with the 
comfortable enjoyment of life or property. 
6. “Inoperable” means not capable of being moved under its own power. 
7. “Stored” means not capable of being used or operated. 
8. “Unlicensed vehicle” means any vehicle which is required to be licensed if it is 
operated on a public street or high way, but which is not displaying a valid and current 
license. 
9. “Vehicle” means every implement, upon or by which a person or property may be 
transported on land, water, or air, and shall include, without limitation, a motor vehicle, 
automobile, truck, trailer, motor home, wagon, fifth wheel trailer, camper, motorcycle, etc. 

 
SECTION 2. SECTION MODIFIED. Section 51.02 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Evansdale, Iowa, is repealed and the following adopted in lieu thereof: 

51.02     NUISANCE.  Except as hereinafter provided, it is hereby declared that any junk, junk 
vehicle, inoperable vehicle, or abandoned vehicle located upon private property, unless excepted 
by Section 51.03, constitutes a threat to the health and safety of the citizens and is a nuisance within 
the meaning of Section 657.1 of the Code of Iowa.  If any junk, junk vehicle, inoperable vehicle, 
or abandoned vehicle is kept upon private property in violation hereof, the owner of or person 
occupying the property upon which it is located shall be prima facie liable for said violation.  

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 364.12[3a]) 
 

SECTION 3. SECTION MODIFIED. Section 50.03 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Evansdale, Iowa, is repealed and the following adopted in lieu thereof: 

51.03    EXCEPTIONS.  The provisions of this chapter do not apply to: 

1. Structure.  Any junk, junk vehicle, inoperable vehicle, or abandoned vehicle stored 
within a garage or other enclosed structure; or  

2. Salvage Yard.  Any junk, junk vehicle, inoperable vehicle, or abandoned vehicle 
stored within an auto salvage yard or junkyard lawfully operated within the City; or 

3. Business Enterprise.  A junk vehicle, inoperable vehicle, or abandoned vehicle on 
the premises of a business enterprise operated in a district properly zoned therefor, when 



necessary to the operation of said business enterprise, as authorized under the zoning 
ordinance of the City; or 

4. Hobbyist Permit.  Any junk vehicle, inoperable vehicle, or abandoned vehicle 
covered under a hobbyist permit obtained from the Evansdale Police Department. 

 
SECTION 4. SECTION MODIFIED. Section 50.04 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Evansdale, 
Iowa, is repealed and the following adopted in lieu thereof: 

51.04    NOTICE TO ABATE.  Upon discovery of any junk, junk vehicle, inoperable vehicle, or 
abandoned vehicle located upon private property in violation of Section 51.02, the City shall be 
authorized to initiate abatement procedures as outlined in Chapter 50 of this Code of Ordinances. 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 364.12[3a]) 
 

SECTION 5. SECTION MODIFIED. Section 50.04 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Evansdale, 
Iowa, is repealed and the following adopted in lieu thereof: 
 

51.05    REPEAT OFFENDERS.  Persons who have received a notice to abate within the last 24 
months under the provisions of this chapter and who, notwithstanding said previous notice, cause 
or allow a violation of this chapter to reoccur on their property shall not be entitled to another 
notice to abate, and may be issued a civil citation in accordance with Chapter 4 of this Code of 
Ordinances.  This section does not preclude the City from seeking other or additional remedies in 
accordance with Chapter 4 or the Code of Iowa. 

 
SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a 
whole or any section, provision, or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional.   

 
SECTION 7:   WHEN EFFECTIVE.  This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final passage, 
approval, and publication as provided by law. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE EVANSDALE CITY COUNCIL ON THIS ___ DAY ______ 
OF 2017.      

                                                                                                  First Reading:  4/18/17   
                                                                                                 Second Reading:   
                                                                                                  Third Reading:    
 
 ATTEST: 
 
             _______________________________                
 Doug Faas, Mayor    DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 
 
 

I certify that the foregoing was published as Ordinance 651 on the _____ day of ___________, 2017.  
 
__________________________ 
DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE 652 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF EVANSDALE, IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, BY AMENDING LOAD 
LIMITS UPON CERTAIN STREETS AND ADDING A NEW SECTION 
PERTAINING TO THE PENALTIES 
 
BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Evansdale, Iowa: 
 
SECTION 1. SECTION MODIFIED. Section 66.03 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Evansdale, Iowa, is repealed and the following adopted in lieu thereof: 
 

66.03    LOAD LIMITS UPON CERTAIN STREETS.  When signs are erected giving 
notice thereof, no person shall operate any vehicle licensed in excess of 10 tons upon any 
of the streets within the City limits.  
 
This section shall not apply to school buses, city-owned vehicles, or vehicles making 
deliveries or pick-ups within the City limits. 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 321.473 & 475) 
 
SECTION 2.  NEW SECTION.  The Code of Ordinances of the City of Evansdale, Iowa, is 
amended by adding a new Section 66.05, entitled PENALTIES, which is hereby adopted to read 
as follows:   
  

66.05 PENALTIES.  In addition to any applicable penalties proscribed in Chapter 4 of 
this Code of Ordinances, the City may impose penalties authorized in Iowa Code Chapter 
321 for violation of Chapter 66 of this Code of Ordinances. Such additional penalties 
include fines and liability for damage to the road. When damage is caused by a driver 
who is not the owner of the vehicle, but is driving with the express or implied permission 
of the owner, then the owner and driver shall be jointly and severally liable for such 
damage.  

(Code of Iowa. Sec. 321.471-475) 
 

SECTION 3. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 
of this ordinance are hereby repealed.   
 

SECTION 4.  SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance 
shall be adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
ordinance as a whole or any section, provision, or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional.   

 
SECTION 5:   WHEN EFFECTIVE.  This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval, and publication as provided by law. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE EVANSDALE CITY COUNCIL ON THIS ____ DAY 
_______ OF 2017.      

                                                                                                  First Reading: 4/18/17   
                                                                                                  Second Reading:   
                                                                                                  Third Reading:    
 



  
 ATTEST: 
 
             _______________________________                
 Doug Faas, Mayor    DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 
 
 

I certify that the foregoing was published as Ordinance 652 on this ____ day of _____ 
2017. 

__________________________
DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 





















Proposal
DATE

4/26/2017

PROPOSAL #

560-2444

NAME / ADDRESS

City of Evansdale
123 N Evans Road
Evansdale, Iowa 50707
Attn :Doug Faas

R Company d/b/a

Frickson Backhoe & Trucking
911 Central Ave.
Evansdale, Ia 50707
319-234-2421

Acceptance By:

SIGNATURE
Phone #

319-234-2421

Fax #

319-287-9309

E-mail

dfrickson@mchsi.com

TOTAL

DESCRIPTION QTY TOTALCOST

We propose to demolish building at the corner of N
Evans and Lafayette ( the old Paines building) .
This includes the tear out and removal of the
parking lot from the West lot line to Evans Rd , 
from the North lot line to Lafayette . This includes
retiring the water and sewer line and calling to get
the other utilities retired as well. We will fill in the
footings and finish with a rough grade. Final grade
and seeding are not included.

31,500.0031,500.00

____________________________...

Any alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs will be executed
only upon written  order, and will become an extra charge over and above the estimate. All
agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents, or delays beyond our control.  Your
signature verifies the above prices,specifications and conditions to be satisfactory. Payment
in full upon completion.
Final grade and seeding not included unless stated.

$31,500.00



RESOLUTION 6068 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE EVANSDALE CITY COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING MAYOR OR PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR TO 
REMOVE DISEASED, DAMAGED, DEAD, OR DYING TREES ON 
PUBLIC PROPERTY 
 
WHEREAS, Iowa Department of Natural Resources has reviewed, advised, and 

determined said diseased, damaged, dead, or dying trees that should be removed from the city; and 
 

WHEREAS, when time allows to remove said trees that the Mayor and or Public Works 
Director be allowed to remove said trees when utilizing city crew and equipment. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE EVANSDALE CITY COUNCIL 
that authorization be given to the Mayor and or Public Works Director authorizing the removal of 
said diseased, damaged, dead, or dying trees on behalf of the City. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 2ND DAY OF MAY 2017.   
 

ATTEST: 
 

_______________________________  ___________________________ 
Doug Faas, Mayor     DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 

 
  
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
EVANSDALE, IOWA, TO ADD NEW CHAPTER  - OFF –ROAD UTILITY VEHICLES 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of Evansdale, Iowa: 
 
SECTION 1.  Chapter  shall be added to the Code of Ordinances of the City of Evansdale, 
Iowa, as follows: 
 
 PURPOSE. The purpose of this Chapter is to regulate the operation of any off-road utility 
vehicle within the City. 
 
 DEFINITIONS.  For use in this Chapter, the following terms are defined:  
 

1. “Off-road utility vehicle” means a motorized flotation-tire vehicle, with not less than 
four and not more than eight low-pressure tires, that is limited to engine displacement 
to less than one thousand five hundred (1,5000) cub centimeters and in total dry 
weight to not more than one thousand eight hundred (1,800) pounds and that has a 
seat that is of bucket or bench design, not intended to be straddled by the operator, 
and a steering wheel or control levers for control.  An operator of an off-road utility 
vehicle is also subject to the provisions of this Chapter governing the operation of all-
terrain vehicles. (Code of Iowa, Sec. 321I.1) 

 
 GENERAL REGULATIONS.  No person shall operate an off-road utility vehicle within 

the City in violation of Chapter 321I of the Code of Iowa or any vehicle in violation 
of rules established by the Natural Resource Commission of the Department of 
Natural Resources governing their registration, numbering, equipment and manner of 
operation.  (Code of Iowa, Sec. 321I) 

 
OPERATION OF OFF-ROAD UTILITY VEHICLES.  The operators of off-road utility                                                            
vehicles shall comply with the following restrictions as to where all-terrain vehicles may be   
operated within the City:  

 
1. Streets.  Off-road utility vehicles may be operated on streets only in accordance with 

Section 321.234A of the Code of Iowa or on such streets as may be designated by 
resolution of the Council for the sport of driving off-road utility vehicles. (Code of Iowa, 
Sec. 321I.10(1 & 3)).  

2. Trails.  Off-road utility vehicles shall not be operated on snowmobile trails except where 
designated. (Code of Iowa, Sec. 321I.10(4))  

3. Railroad Right-of-way.  Off-road utility vehicles shall not be operated on an operating 
railroad right-of-way, but may be driven directly across a railroad right-of-way only at an 
established crossing and notwithstanding any other provisions of law may, if necessary, 
use the improved portion of the established crossing after yielding to all oncoming traffic. 
(Code of Iowa, Sec. 321I.14(1)(h))  

4. Parks and Other City Land.  Off-road utility vehicles shall not be operated in any park, 
playground or upon any other City-owned property without the express written 
permission of the City.    



5. Sidewalk or Parking.  Off-road utility vehicles shall not be operated upon the public 
sidewalk or that portion of the street located between the curb line and the sidewalk or 
property line commonly referred to as the “parking.”  

6.  
NEGLIGENCE.  The owner and operator of an off-road utility vehicle is liable for any 
injury   or damage occasioned by the negligent operation of said vehicle. The owner of an 
off-road utility vehicle shall be liable for any such injury or damage only if the owner was 
the operator of the vehicle at the time the injury or damage occurred or if the operator had the 
owner’s consent to operate the vehicle at the time the injury or damage occurred.  (Code of 
Iowa, Sec. 321I.19)   

 
 ACCIDENT REPORTS.  Whenever off-road utility vehicle is involved in an accident resulting 
in injury or death to anyone or property damage amounting to one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) 
or more, either the operator or someone acting for the operator shall immediately notify a law 
enforcement officer and shall file an accident report, in accordance with State law.   
 (Code of Iowa, Sec. 321I.11)  
 
 PERMIT.   The following requirements apply to Permit Fees for operators of off-road utility 
vehicle:  
 

1. No person shall operate an off-road utility vehicle on any public street or alley, for any 
purpose, unless the operator possesses an Evansdale permit to operate said vehicle within 
Evansdale, Iowa. 

2. Owners and operators of an off-road utility vehicle may apply for a permit from the City 
of Evansdale on forms provided by the City and available at the Evansdale Police 
Department. 

3. An authorized employee or agent of the City of Evansdale shall not issue a permit until 
the owner or operator has provided the following: 

a. Evidence that the owner or operator is at least eighteen (18) years of age and 
possesses a valid Iowa driver’s license. 

b. Proof that the owner or operator has liability insurance covering operation of the 
vehicle. 

c. Proof that the vehicle complies with the equipment standards enumerated in 
Section ? of this Chapter. 

4. All permits shall be issued for a specific vehicle.  Permit holder will be issued a 
numbered decal  to affix to the left side rear fender or similar component. 

5. The fee for such permits shall be twenty-five dollars ($25.00). Permits will be granted for 
one (1) year valid from January 01 through December 31. Permits may be purchased at 
any time during the year but will be valid only through December 31.  

6. The permit may be suspended or revoked upon finding evidence that the permit holder 
has violated the conditions of the permit or has abused the privilege of being a permit 
holder. There shall be no refunds for the permit fee. 

7. All permits shall be uniquely identify the name and address of the owner or operator. 
 
 EQUIPMENT. All vehicles governed by this Chapter shall be equipped with a minimum of the 
following features: 

1. A safety flag, the top of which shall be a minimum of five (5) feet from ground level. 
2. Adequate brakes. 
3. A muffler that allows the vehicle to operate without violating the City’s noise ordinance. 



4. A mirror that allows the operator to view behind the vehicle. 
5. Working turn signals. 
6. All equipment necessary to keep the vehicle in good mechanical condition and 

thoroughly safe for transportation of passengers. 
7. Working head lights, tail lights and brake lights. 

 
 TIMES OF OPERATION. All vehicles governed by this Chapter may be operated                                                                          
on city streets only between sunrise and sunset.  
 
 SPEED. All vehicles governed by this Chapter shall operate at speeds no more than posted and 
must obey all other traffic laws of the City of Evansdale and the State of Iowa. No vehicle 
governed by this Chapter shall travel faster than thirty-five miles per hour (35 mph). 
 
 PENALTY In addition to the suspension or revocation of the permit, any violator of this 
 Chapter is guilty of a municipal infraction of this Code of Ordinances.  
 
SECTION 2.   REPEALER.   All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the 
provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.   SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.   If any section, provision or part of this ordinance 
shall be adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 



 
 
SECTION 4.   WHEN EFFECTIVE.  This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law. 
 
Passed by the Council the 10th day of January, 2017, and approved this 10th day of January, 
2017. 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
       Tim Swope, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Kristi Lundy, City Clerk 
 
 
First Reading:  December 13, 2016 
Second Reading: January 10, 2017 
Third Reading:  January 10, 2017 
 
 
 
I certify that the foregoing was posted as Ordinance No.242 on the 10th day of January, 2017. 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Kristi Lundy, City Clerk 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
EVANSDALE, IOWA, TO ADD NEW CHAPTER  - OFF –ROAD UTILITY VEHICLES 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of Evansdale, Iowa: 
 
SECTION 1.  Chapter _______ shall be added to the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Evansdale, Iowa, as follows: 
 
 PURPOSE. The purpose of this Chapter is to regulate the operation of any off-road utility 
vehicle within the City. 
 
 DEFINITIONS.  For use in this Chapter, the following terms are defined:  
 
3. “Off-road utility vehicle” means a motorized flotation-tire vehicle, with not less than four 
and not more than eight low-pressure tires, that is limited to engine displacement to less than one 
thousand five hundred (1,5000) cubic centimeters and in total dry weight to not more than one 
thousand eight hundred (1,800) pounds and that has a seat that is of bucket or bench design, not 
intended to be straddled by the operator, and a steering wheel or control levers for control.  An 
operator of an off-road utility vehicle is also subject to the provisions of this Chapter governing 
the operation of all-terrain vehicles. (Code of Iowa, Sec. 321I.1) 
 

 GENERAL REGULATIONS.  No person shall operate an off-road utility vehicle within 
the City in violation of Chapter 321I of the Code of Iowa or any vehicle in violation 
of rules established by the Natural Resource Commission of the Department of 
Natural Resources governing their registration, numbering, equipment and manner of 
operation.  (Code of Iowa, Sec. 321I) 

 
OPERATION OF OFF-ROAD UTILITY VEHICLES.  The operators of off-road utility                                                            
vehicles shall comply with the following restrictions as to where all-terrain vehicles may be   
operated within the City:  

 
1. Streets.  Off-road utility vehicles may be operated on streets only in accordance with 

Section 321.234A of the Code of Iowa or on such streets as may be designated by 
resolution of the Council for the sport of driving off-road utility vehicles. (Code of Iowa, 
Sec. 321I.10(1 & 3)).  

2. Trails.  Off-road utility vehicles shall not be operated on snowmobile trails except where 
designated. (Code of Iowa, Sec. 321I.10(4))  

3. Railroad Right-of-way.  Off-road utility vehicles shall not be operated on an operating 
railroad right-of-way, but may be driven directly across a railroad right-of-way only at an 
established crossing and notwithstanding any other provisions of law may, if necessary, 
use the improved portion of the established crossing after yielding to all oncoming traffic. 
(Code of Iowa, Sec. 321I.14(1)(h))  

4. Parks and Other City Land.  Off-road utility vehicles shall not be operated in any park, 
playground or upon any other City-owned property without the express written 
permission of the City.    

5. Sidewalk or Parking.  Off-road utility vehicles shall not be operated upon the public 

Formatted: Left, No widow/orphan control, Don't adjust
space between Latin and Asian text, Don't adjust space
between Asian text and numbers, Tab stops:  -1", Left

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 
1.5"



sidewalk or that portion of the street located between the curb line and the sidewalk or 
property line commonly referred to as the “parking.”  
6.  

NEGLIGENCE.  The owner and operator of an off-road utility vehicle is liable for any 
injury   or damage occasioned by the negligent operation of said vehicle. The owner of an 
off-road utility vehicle shall be liable for any such injury or damage only if the owner was 
the operator of the vehicle at the time the injury or damage occurred or if the operator had the 
owner’s consent to operate the vehicle at the time the injury or damage occurred.  (Code of 
Iowa, Sec. 321I.19)   

 
 ACCIDENT REPORTS.  Whenever off-road utility vehicle is involved in an accident resulting 
in injury or death to anyone or property damage amounting to one thousand five hundred dollars 
($1,0500.00) or more, either the operator or someone acting for the operator shall immediately 
notify a law enforcement officer and shall file an accident report, in accordance with State law.   
 (Code of Iowa, Sec. 321I.11)  
 
 PERMIT.   The following requirements apply to Permit Fees for operators of any off-road 
utility vehicle:  
 

1. No person shall operate an off-road utility vehicle on any public street or alley, for any 
purpose, unless the operator possesses an Evansdale permit to operate said vehicle within 
Evansdale, Iowa. 

2. Owners and operators of an off-road utility vehicle may apply for a permit from the City 
of Evansdale on forms provided by the City and available at the Evansdale Police 
Department. 

3. An authorized employee or agent of the City of Evansdale shall not issue a permit until 
the owner or operator has provided the following: 

a. Evidence that the owner or operator is at least eighteen (18) years of age and 
possesses a valid Iowa driver’s license. 

b. Proof that the owner or operator has liability insurance covering operation of the 
vehicle. 

c. Proof that the vehicle complies with the equipment standards enumerated in 
Section ?___ of this Chapter. 

4. All permits shall be issued for a specific vehicle.  Permit holders will be issued a number 
and purchase 3” minimum reflective numbers to affix to the left side rear fender or 
similar component. 

5. The fee for such permits shall be twenty-five dollars ($25.00). Permits will be granted for 
one (1) year valid from January 01 through December 31 of each year. Permits may be 
purchased at any time during the year but will be valid only through December 31.  

6. TheAny permit may be suspended or revoked upon finding evidence that the permit 
holder has violated the conditions of the permit or has abused the privilege of being a 
permit holder. There shall be no refunds for the permit fee under any circumstance. 

7. All permits shall be uniquely identify the name and address of the owner or operator. 
 
 EQUIPMENT. All vehicles governed by this Chapter shall be equipped with a minimum of the 
following features: 

1. A safety flag, the top of which shall be a minimum of five (5) feet from ground level. 
2. Adequate brakes. 
3. A muffler that allows the vehicle to operate without violating the City’s noise ordinance. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or numbering

Commented [LF1]: Section 321I sets the threshold at $1,500, 
not $1,000 as Elk Run Heights did. 

Commented [LF2]: Since this is what Elk Run Heights requires, 
how will you know whether the permit number initiated from 
Evansdale or Elk Run Heights? I suggest putting the Evansdale 
permit number in a different spot and/or making sure there’s a 
unique identifier, such as “EV100” “EV101”, etc. 



4. A mirror that allows the operator to view behind the vehicle. 
5. Working turn signals. 
6. All equipment necessary to keep the vehicle in good mechanical condition and 

thoroughly safe for transportation of passengers. 
7. Working head lights, tail lights and brake lights. 

 
 TIMES OF OPERATION. All vehicles governed by this Chapter may be operated                                                                          
on city streets only between sunrise and sunset.  
 
 SPEED. All vehicles governed by this Chapter shall operate at speeds no more than posted and 
must obey all other traffic laws of the City of Evansdale and the State of Iowa. No vehicle 
governed by this Chapter shall travel faster than thirty-five miles per hour (35 mph). 
 
 PENALTY In addition to the suspension or revocation of the permit, any violator of this 
 Chapter is guilty of a municipal infraction of this Code of Ordinances.  
 
SECTION 2.   REPEALER.   All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the 
provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.   SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.   If any section, provision or part of this ordinance 
shall be adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 



 
 
SECTION 4.   WHEN EFFECTIVE.  This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law. 
 
Passed by the Council the ____10th day of January_______, 2017, and approved this 10___th 
day of _________January, 2017. 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Doug Faas Tim Swope, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
DeAnne KobliskaKristi Lundy, City Clerk 
 
 
First Reading:  December 13, 2016 
Second Reading: January 10, 2017 
Third Reading:  January 10, 2017 
 
 
 
I certify that the foregoing was posted as Ordinance No.____242 on the 10__th day of January_______, 

2017. 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Kristi LundyDeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 
 














	Agenda 05-02-17
	REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	TUESDAY –MAY 2, 2017 – 6:00 PM
	EVANSDALE CITY HALL
	AGENDA


	Bike Month 2017
	City of Evansdale, Iowa

	4-18-17 Council Minutes
	Ownership Chg - Station Mart - 1119 River Forest Rd.
	Station Mart - Refund Request - 3594 Lafayette Rd.
	TEAM SERVICES AGREEMENT
	Request for WCEC
	05-02-2017 RES OF BILLS
	Sheet1

	Trent Law Firm 
	Clappsaddle-Garber Associates invoice
	FLASHING SCHOOL ZONE SIGN QUOTES
	SAFETY TRAFFIC LIGHT FOR ROOSEVELT INTERSECTION
	ORD 649 PUBLIC PEACE
	ATTEST:

	ORD 650 NUISANCE ABATEMENT PROCEDURE
	ORD 651 JUNK AND JUNK VEHICLES
	ATTEST:

	ORD 652 LOAD AND WEIGHT RESTRICTIONS
	ATTEST:

	SALT QUOTE - COMPASS MINERALS
	KLUESNER CONSTRUCTION - CRACK SEAL
	REQUEST TO DEMOLISH 3573 LAFAYETTE ROAD
	RES 6068 DECAYING DEAD TREES
	ATV Word doc
	UTV Ordinance--redlined 4.26.17
	WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY INSPECTION

	Button2: 
	Button3: 


